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          1                     P R O C E E D I N G S

          2                       October 30, 2006

          3                   MS. KRIEGER: The next item is 

          4          Communications Advisory Committee, Verizon 

          5          License.

          6                   Any questions, discussions of the 

          7          Verizon license?  Mr. Buczkowski.

          8                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI:  Good evening.  I 

          9          gave I am Dave Buczkowski from the 

         10          Communications Advisory Committee and I am 

         11          here to report this evening at the last 

         12          meeting, the full last meeting of the 

         13          committee, we voted to advise the 

         14          Selectmen that a license be granted to 

         15          Verizon for a cable license, said license 

         16          to provide for a 15-year final license 

         17          term.

         18                   Verizon will pay five percent of 

         19          its gross annual revenues for peg access 

         20          and Verizon will provide $35,000 in 

         21          capital funding within 45 days of 

         22          execution of the final license.  Verizon 

         23          will provide $17,500 in capital funding on 

         24          the third anniversary of the execution of 
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          1          the final license.  They will also pay 

          2          $17,606 per year as I-NET funding.  They 

          3          will provide services to substantially all 

          4          of the residents served by aerial plant 

          5          within 12 months of execution.  And I am 

          6          advised by Verizon that they are probably 

          7          99 percent there as I speak right now.  

          8          And service to the entire town, both 

          9          aerial and underground, within 24 months 

         10          of the execution of the license.  They 

         11          will provide free peg access channels to 

         12          be programmed by the access corporation 

         13          with a formula for the fourth peg access 

         14          channel based upon usage. 

         15                   And I think this is crucial in 

         16          light of Federal and State activities that 

         17          are going on now by both Verizon and other 

         18          cable companies.  The final license shall 

         19          survive any Federal or State law changes 

         20          which eliminate the authority of local 

         21          governments to require or grant cable 

         22          television licenses to the extent 

         23          permitted by the law. 

         24                   MS. KRIEGER: Thank you.  Any 
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          1          comment from the Board? 

          2                   Mr. Manz. 

          3                   MR. MANZ: Well, there is one.  

          4          And Mr. Cohen opened this door several, 

          5          several weeks ago so I will step through 

          6          it again, even though it does not directly 

          7          bear on this application.

          8                   When we were here last week, this 

          9          comment was made some weeks ago and then 

         10          when we were here last week it was brought 

         11          up again, which was the issue of double 

         12          poles in Lexington.  And I noticed that 

         13          several had disappeared over the last 

         14          couple of weeks, which I think we all 

         15          appreciate.

         16                   There is a database of such poles 

         17          held, held by Verizon, and we, a manual 

         18          survey shows that 130 of those are both 

         19          present on our streets and in the 

         20          database, 113 more are not in the database 

         21          but they are on our streets, and there are 

         22          19 that are in the database but nowhere to 

         23          be found on our streets. 

         24                   So I would have to question the 
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          1          validity of the database and, therefore, 

          2          the promises that have been made along the 

          3          way to remove these poles are somewhat 

          4          hollow in that, apparently, they can't 

          5          locate 60 percent, 60 some percent of 

          6          them.  I mean there are 113 they know 

          7          nothing about that are there.  Reliable 

          8          volunteers have spotted them. 

          9                   So I am wondering at this point 

         10          what, what Verizon is going to do going 

         11          forward to assure us that the agreements 

         12          made some years ago on removal of these 

         13          would actually be followed. 

         14                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: We have a few 

         15          representatives of Verizon here this 

         16          evening, if you would like to speak to one 

         17          of them. 

         18                   MR. MANZ: Sure.  And the number 

         19          we are working with currently is 243 

         20          double poles within the town limits. 

         21                   MS. KRIEGER: Mr. Bowman.

         22                   MR. BOWMAN: Hi. My name is Peter 

         23          Bowman.  I am Vice President of Verizon 

         24          for External Affairs. 
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          1                   When I was here a couple of weeks 

          2          ago, Mr. Cohen, as you said, had brought 

          3          up the question of double poles.  I had at 

          4          that time looked, you know, through our 

          5          database and kind of gave the Board some 

          6          feedback on that. 

          7                   The volunteer committee, as you 

          8          referenced, did go out over the weekend, I 

          9          believe, and conducted additional surveys.  

         10          And as you stated, right now there does 

         11          seem to be a conflict in the database 

         12          compared to what the inventory of the 

         13          volunteers is, and I would operate under 

         14          the assumption that the inventory that the 

         15          volunteers took is, is accurate. 

         16                   I spoke, I received an e-mail 

         17          late last night about that.  I have 

         18          referred that over to our operations 

         19          folks.  What they are going to do with 

         20          that inventory is go out and re-verify it, 

         21          input it into the database. 

         22                   On that database, the double pole 

         23          was identified, but the status of who was 

         24          on that pole and who was next to transfer 
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          1          will be inputted by us when we complete 

          2          our surveys so that we know whose ball in 

          3          the court it is.

          4                   As I stated a couple of weeks 

          5          ago, as Mr. Cohen had brought it up and 

          6          now Mr. Manz has brought it up, there are 

          7          a number of double poles, 200 plus, I 

          8          would say, in the community.  So we are 

          9          doing work here.  Over the last two to 

         10          three years, as I look at the database, 

         11          about 300 double poles have been removed.  

         12          Clearly, new poles, though, have been 

         13          placed for mainly for electric upgrades.  

         14          So there has been progress in the 

         15          community but, you know, some of the 

         16          double poles have been there for, for 

         17          years based on the inventory.  And the 

         18          comment, which clearly is not, not 

         19          acceptable, I personally will be involved 

         20          in resolving this. 

         21                   If members of this Board as well 

         22          as the volunteer committee would be 

         23          willing to participate in that, I would 

         24          make sure that an effort was made to 
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          1          resolve this problem. 

          2                   MS. KRIEGER: Mr. Mehr. 

          3                   MR. PAGETT:  Could I just say, 

          4          Peter, we were told that three years ago 

          5          at the DTE hearing, weren't we -- 

          6                   MR. BOWMAN: Yes. 

          7                   MR. PAGETT: -- that you were 

          8          going to make a concerted effort to solve 

          9          the problems? 

         10                   MR. BOWMAN: Right.  And we have 

         11          been working with DTE in reducing the 

         12          number of poles.  There is going to be 

         13          further effort. 

         14                   MR. PAGETT: But as I recall, at 

         15          that hearing we were told Lexington was 

         16          going to be a prototype to show what a 

         17          good job Verizon could do. 

         18                   MR. BOWMAN: I mean we, you know, 

         19          like I said, I will assume the inventory 

         20          that was taken was accurate.  We will work 

         21          with the Board, through Mr. Valente, 

         22          whatever the Board's, how ever the Board 

         23          wants to approach it, working with Mr. 

         24          Mehr and his committee to resolve the 
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          1          problem. 

          2                   MR. MANZ: I guess we are a little 

          3          worried that this is turning into that 

          4          Calculus problem with sand dropping on the 

          5          conveyer belt.  That just a quick 

          6          calculation says it is going to be at 

          7          least another six years before we see the 

          8          end of the, even, even if it is 

          9          aggressively managed, it will be another 

         10          six years at least before the end of 

         11          double poles, given the current rate of 

         12          replenishment and the rate of removal. 

         13                   And I guess we would like to see 

         14          something more than a promise to, to be 

         15          aggressive.  I guess we would like to see 

         16          some demonstration of faith here. 

         17                   MR. BOWMAN: Yes, sir. 

         18                   MS. KRIEGER: Mr. Mehr, do you 

         19          want to comment? 

         20                   MR. MEHR: Thank you, Madam Chair.  

         21          My name is Patrick Mehr, Precinct Three, 

         22          Town Meeting member.  And I am a member of 

         23          the Selectmen appointed directory ad hoc 

         24          committee. 
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          1                   Mr. Bowman referred to 

          2          volunteers.  This is a formal committee of 

          3          the town.  And what happened is following 

          4          the public hearing at which Mr. Bowman 

          5          stated that the 149 double poles were in 

          6          our streets, our committee had a meeting 

          7          and decided to conduct a full survey of 

          8          the whole 145 miles or so streets that 

          9          have poles across the town. 

         10                   Mr. Manz summarized the numbers.  

         11          In summary, there are 63 percent more 

         12          poles than Mr. Bowman informed this Board.  

         13          In addition, there are 113 poles, as Mr. 

         14          Manz indicated, that are not in the 

         15          database. 

         16                   Now, for a bit of history, three 

         17          years ago, by State law, the Department of 

         18          Communications and Energy, DTE, held a 

         19          public hearing under Docket 03-87, at 

         20          which the Chairman of our committee, Paul 

         21          Cherney, testified at length, at which 

         22          then Selectmen McKenna testified on behalf 

         23          of the Town. 

         24                   And the bottom line, the major 
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          1          bottom line, I should say, of the hearing 

          2          was that Verizon and NStar promised that 

          3          Lexington would be a pilot statewide to 

          4          show to the Legislature and to the DTE 

          5          that because this then new PLM database 

          6          was being instituted, they would know 

          7          where the double poles are, they would 

          8          keep track of who is next to move the 

          9          wires, they would manage the process; and 

         10          therefore, the double poles in Lexington 

         11          would comply with State law, which is that 

         12          no double pole can be in the streets for 

         13          more than 90 days. 

         14                   So we said fine, let's see what 

         15          happens.  And what happened is that indeed 

         16          we saw lots of crews in the following 

         17          three or four months across the town, and 

         18          the number of double poles, which in 

         19          October of 2003 was 373 according to our 

         20          survey, went down.  And then, frankly, 

         21          because we are indeed volunteers, even 

         22          though members of the former committee of 

         23          the town, we did not survey things until 

         24          this past week. 
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          1                   And what we found this past week, 

          2          we have already talked about.  What it 

          3          means is two things.  First of all, the 

          4          promise made by Verizon, a 

          5          multi-billion-dollar company, officially 

          6          to the state in October of 2003, which is 

          7          the PLM would allow them to manage double 

          8          poles in Lexington, has not been 

          9          fulfilled.

         10                   Number two, when Selectman Cohen 

         11          asked here two weeks ago how many double 

         12          poles we have, Mr. Bowman responded with 

         13          great assurance, even though he knows 

         14          because he has been in meetings with our 

         15          committee in 2002 for seven different 

         16          times and we showed to the utilities at 

         17          that point that unfortunately the database 

         18          was not accurate, instead of putting 

         19          caveats that maybe the database is not 

         20          accurate, we haven't maintained it, 

         21          whatever, the answer came 149. 

         22                   And again, it is not 149.  It is 

         23          243.  So these are the facts which our 

         24          committee is reporting to you. 
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          1                   From now on, I will speak only as 

          2          a citizen simply because our committee has 

          3          not had a chance to review the findings of 

          4          the survey that we conducted last week.  

          5          As a citizen, it becomes now very clear to 

          6          me twice now, Verizon, a 

          7          multi-billion-dollar company, has not 

          8          fulfilled its promise. 

          9                   First it says we are going to fix 

         10          the problem.  Three years later it is not 

         11          fixed and we have at least 60 poles in 

         12          this town that have been on the streets 

         13          three years or more, some we know for more 

         14          than five years.  Second, this Board is 

         15          shown a number which a week later is shown 

         16          to be inaccurate.  Therefore, as a 

         17          citizen, it seems to me that on this issue 

         18          for reasons which allude me, frankly, we 

         19          cannot take the word of Verizon anymore. 

         20                   Second, I observed that it is a 

         21          strategic priority for Verizon to develop 

         22          the sales of cable programming over FiOS 

         23          as the Wall Street Journal reported on 

         24          October 18th, I believe, in the form of 
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          1          the new compensation package for the CEO 

          2          of that corporation.  Therefore, it is a 

          3          conclusion, and again speaking only for 

          4          myself as a citizen, I would recommend 

          5          that this Board no longer take any promise 

          6          from Verizon, but only verifiable facts 

          7          which, again, our volunteers would be 

          8          willing to spend enormous amounts of time 

          9          it takes to drive 140 miles of streets in 

         10          Lexington. 

         11                   And therefore, my recommendation 

         12          to this Board is to put the signature of 

         13          this contract on hold until indeed the 

         14          number of double poles has diminished to, 

         15          say, something like 50, which is my rough 

         16          estimate of what 90 days worth of 

         17          inventory of double poles should be around 

         18          the town, and certainly until the 60 poles 

         19          that have been in the streets for three 

         20          years or more are gone.  And the reason I 

         21          am saying this, and I understand that if, 

         22          let's say, it takes Verizon six months or 

         23          six weeks or even six days to accomplish 

         24          this 243 down to a small number of, say, 
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          1          50, if during that period of time the 

          2          Federal Government or the State 

          3          Legislature were to indeed take away the 

          4          authority for Lexington to sign this kind 

          5          of license, I fully as a citizen 

          6          understand that we will forego all the 

          7          payments that were just summarized by the 

          8          representative from the CAC, but what I am 

          9          telling this Board as a citizen is that I 

         10          believe it is much more important to 

         11          accept to do business only with a 

         12          corporation that acts lawfully, unlike 

         13          Verizon has done now for the last three 

         14          years, violating hundreds of times each 

         15          and every day in our town, than to receive 

         16          funds from that corporation.  

         17                   So in summary, my recommendation 

         18          is that you certainly congratulate the CAC 

         19          for a very well done job and that you put 

         20          the signature of this contract on hold 

         21          until it is verifiably proven to you that 

         22          all double poles in this town are not 

         23          older than 90 days.  And I will be happy 

         24          to answer any questions you may have.  
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          1          Thank you.

          2                   MS. McKENNA:  Ms. Dawn McKenna, 

          3          Precinct Six.  As Mr. Mehr alluded, 

          4          several years ago I attended the meeting 

          5          on behalf of this Board.  And at that 

          6          time, I think the one thing that was 

          7          missing from the conversation that Mr. 

          8          Mehr just had is that at that meeting I 

          9          was very clear that the Board was prepared 

         10          not to grant any more grant of location 

         11          opportunities for them until they made 

         12          significant progress towards getting rid 

         13          of the double poles.  And as Mr. Mehr 

         14          correctly points out, they very quickly 

         15          started doing their job and complying with 

         16          the law by removing those poles.  But to 

         17          hear three years later that there is still 

         18          some 60 poles out there that were in place 

         19          at that time is very very disturbing. 

         20                   And it is clear to me that this 

         21          is a company who is very much based on 

         22          economics.  And the only way to get any 

         23          true reaction out of them is through their 

         24          economics.  They weren't prepared to not 
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          1          have grant of locations three years ago.  

          2          I am sure if this Board would have the 

          3          courage to withhold a license until they 

          4          comply with the law that they would in 

          5          fact very quickly do what needs to be done 

          6          to comply with the State law.

          7                   The State law is very clear.  

          8          Ninety days.   Now, I don't think any of 

          9          us would be here if it was six months, 

         10          eight months, nine months.  But three 

         11          years ago they promised this town that 

         12          they were going to solve this problem.  

         13          And they have had three years to fix it.  

         14          And they really have not only not taken 

         15          care of all the problems that existed 

         16          then, they are continuing to get worse.  

         17          And unfortunately, at that hearing, the 

         18          hearing officer was very clear that he was 

         19          very sympathetic and we were not the only 

         20          community represented there with all the 

         21          communities, but they were willing to give 

         22          Verizon a chance.  I don't think we can 

         23          give Verizon a chance anymore.  And I hope 

         24          the Board will very strongly withhold 
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          1          signature on this license until they 

          2          comply with the law because unless we make 

          3          them do it because there is an economic 

          4          incentive, they have demonstrated very 

          5          clearly that they have no desire to solve 

          6          Lexington's problem.  Thank you. 

          7                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: I just wanted to 

          8          remind the Board that the Board has six 0 

          9          days from the hearing closed to accept or 

         10          reject the license. 

         11                   MS. KRIEGER: Thank you. 

         12                   MR. PAGETT:  Could we hear Mr. 

         13          Bowman's reaction to what Mr. Mehr and 

         14          Mrs. McKenna said? 

         15                   MS. KRIEGER: Yes, we can.  I 

         16          think one of the things that I would like 

         17          to say before I turn it back to Mr. Bowman 

         18          is that as sympathetic as I am with the 

         19          desire to eliminate double poles, my 

         20          understanding is that it would really 

         21          serve no purpose for us to withhold our 

         22          signatures on the contract.

         23                   I understand that we at this 

         24          point in time do have Mr. Bowman's 
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          1          attention.  At least he is here in the 

          2          room with us.  And I would hope that he 

          3          would be willing to commit to sitting with 

          4          us and particularly working with Mr. 

          5          Cohen, who is the liaison to the electric 

          6          utility ad hoc committee, to develop a 

          7          process by which the database would be 

          8          updated to commit to the schedule of 

          9          reducing the double poles, and providing 

         10          regular reporting to the Board of 

         11          Selectmen in order to work at addressing 

         12          the double pole problem here in Lexington. 

         13                   MR. KELLEY: Can I ask what the 

         14          timeline is presently on those 60 days?  

         15          Where do we stand on that? 

         16                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: Is it the closing 

         17          of the public hearing?

         18                   MR. COHEN:  Yes.

         19                   MR. KELLEY: So we are about 14 

         20          days beyond the closing and the clock 

         21          particulars for 45 days later? 

         22                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: That is correct. 

         23                   MR. KELLEY: It seems to me 45 

         24          days should be enough for Verizon to ink a 
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          1          commitment that shows the sincerity of the 

          2          interests about the double poles that has 

          3          been conveyed to us tonight.  And we 

          4          should look at this in another two or four 

          5          weeks. 

          6                   MS. McKENNA: Excuse me, Mrs. 

          7          Krieger.  I just want to remind the Board 

          8          that in fact four years ago under 

          9          Mr. McSweeney's leadership, we requested 

         10          and came to that kind of an agreement with 

         11          Verizon that they would produce reports.  

         12          And I have copies of all those reports 

         13          which I would be happy to share again with 

         14          the Board.  We got them on a pretty 

         15          regular basis through the hearing, for the 

         16          three months thereafter, and then they 

         17          stopped, and then their commitment 

         18          stopped.  So unless you have some kind of 

         19          written documentation that guarantees that 

         20          there are financial disincentives to 

         21          Verizon not to be fulfilling their 

         22          commitment, we have no further assurance 

         23          that today they are going to fulfill their 

         24          commitment as they did then.  We have gone 
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          1          that route already.  It didn't work. 

          2                   MS. KRIEGER: Mr. Cohen. 

          3                   MR. COHEN: I do want to point out 

          4          that, you know, this is regulated by State 

          5          law.  DTE regulates this.  And I know, 

          6          Ms. McKenna, you talked about courage to 

          7          say no and you spoke about the fact that 

          8          we probably should have, the Selectmen 

          9          should have stopped giving grants of 

         10          location. 

         11                   We also, though, it seems to me 

         12          that what is being overlooked in that 

         13          situation is that we have citizens in this 

         14          town, some of whom are building houses, 

         15          some of them who are living in houses who 

         16          have very special needs for grants of 

         17          location.  And if we say no, you can't do 

         18          that, because we are holding Verizon 

         19          hostage in this situation.  I don't think 

         20          the Board comes out very well, looking 

         21          very well. 

         22                   And also it seems to me that this 

         23          morning I asked the town manager if he 

         24          could check with our special counsel who 
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          1          regulates, who advises us on cable matters 

          2          and this, of whether the double poles, 

          3          whether we could put that into the license 

          4          agreement.  And Carl, could you tell me 

          5          what you found out? 

          6                   MR. VALENTE: I discussed this 

          7          with Peter Epstein, our special counsel in 

          8          this.  And he informed me that the double 

          9          pole issue is not a basis for making a 

         10          decision on this contract, that the town 

         11          is preempted on this issue by the DTE 

         12          regulations and under the federal law that 

         13          this contract comes under that it is not a 

         14          basis for denying the contract. 

         15                   MR. COHEN: Okay.  Now, it is 

         16          true, as I think Mr. Kelley just pointed 

         17          out and the committee pointed out, that we 

         18          have 60 days from the end of the public 

         19          hearing.  The question, of course, that we 

         20          have to, we certainly have to, even today, 

         21          and I know, well, many of my colleagues 

         22          get lots of calls, and I actually got one 

         23          today, a call, calling me to find out if 

         24          it was on the agenda and hoping we would 
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          1          vote for it.  There are a number of people 

          2          who apparently, in the town, want this 

          3          service. 

          4                   But I wonder what kind of 

          5          commitment we can get.  If we could get 

          6          some kind of a commitment because we, all 

          7          five of us, I believe, are really 

          8          concerned about the double poles.  And as 

          9          you know, I have brought it up many times 

         10          as the liaison to the committee.  I 

         11          promised I wasn't going to do it every 

         12          week and I did stop.  But what kind of a 

         13          commitment can we get from Verizon? 

         14                   MR. BOWMAN: Well, to you, Mr. 

         15          Cohen and Madam Chairman, you know, first 

         16          I want to say that when I spoke last a 

         17          couple of weeks ago, I believe I reported 

         18          what was in the database.  And as I said, 

         19          what the committee had done, they had gone 

         20          out and looked at those, we are going to 

         21          verify those, put those in the database 

         22          and in fact, you know, begin working on 

         23          those double poles.  We have removed 80 

         24          double poles in 2006 here in Lexington.  
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          1          We have removed 300 double poles over the 

          2          last two and a half to three years here in 

          3          the town.  It has been a lot of poles 

          4          going in and coming out mainly because of 

          5          electric upgrades, as I said earlier.  So 

          6          although I would not disagree that it is 

          7          not up to the satisfaction of the Board 

          8          and the residents of Lexington, I don't 

          9          want to leave you with the impression that 

         10          we worked for three or four months and 

         11          then did nothing after that. 

         12                   We continued to work this issue 

         13          and continued to reduce the double poles.  

         14          I don't see any reason why we can't get 

         15          after this, this situation, meet with Mrs. 

         16          Krieger or Mr. Cohen as the liaison, and 

         17          get a plan that is acceptable to the Town 

         18          of Lexington to get this pole issue, this 

         19          problem resolved once and for all. 

         20                   Like I said, there has been a lot 

         21          of activity in the community to remove the 

         22          poles but, you know, understandably not to 

         23          the satisfaction of the Board and the 

         24          town, I mean and the residents.  So I 
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          1          would be perfectly willing personally to 

          2          work with you, Ms. Krieger or Mr. Cohen, 

          3          or whoever the designated liaison is 

          4          through the town, to resolve this problem. 

          5                   MS. KRIEGER: Mr. Kelley. 

          6                   MR. KELLEY: I think that is a 

          7          very legitimate commitment.  It is one 

          8          made to us as a Board personally from you, 

          9          the integrity of your personal commitment 

         10          and the company that you stand for.  And 

         11          that being done, I think we should and I 

         12          would like to make a motion to postpone 

         13          the vote on this license for either two, 

         14          not to exceed four weeks, when he can come 

         15          back after his commitment is fulfilled 

         16          with either Norman or Jeanne's 

         17          participation. 

         18                   MS. KRIEGER: Mr. McGrail.

         19                   MR. McGRAIL:  I would like to 

         20          make a statement relative to the 

         21          negotiations.  My name is Jim McGrail.  I 

         22          am the outside consultant that has been 

         23          retained by Verizon to assist in the 

         24          negotiating process.
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          1                   I think it would be important to 

          2          note that aside from Peter's statement 

          3          about Verizon's commitment to removing the 

          4          double poles and the fact that we have 

          5          removed 80 to date this year in the Town 

          6          of Lexington, and we remain committed to 

          7          doing so, I think I know Peter Bowman well 

          8          enough to know that his word is good and 

          9          you have his attention, and he certainly 

         10          will continue to work to remove these 

         11          poles. 

         12                   I should also note that we had a 

         13          public hearing that the committee, the 

         14          Cable Advisory Committee conducted, that 

         15          there was not one voice of opposition to 

         16          the license.  And as Selectmen Cohen has 

         17          mentioned, there are a number of people in 

         18          this community, certainly, that are 

         19          concerned about double poles, but a number 

         20          of people in this community that are 

         21          concerned and want Verizon to start 

         22          providing video services in the community. 

         23                   I think we have a joint interest 

         24          here.  I think the committee, the town, 
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          1          some of the people within the town, 

          2          probably a good majority of the people in 

          3          the town want double poles removed.  You 

          4          have Mr. Bowman's attention.  At the same 

          5          time, there are a number of people in this 

          6          community that want Verizon's product, 

          7          that want continued or improved choice 

          8          here within the community.  You have the 

          9          recommendation of the Cable Advisory 

         10          Committee, you know, supporting this 

         11          license.  And I think that I am not so 

         12          sure, I think we, you know, we have the 

         13          opportunity here this evening to serve two 

         14          purposes, to continue the effort and 

         15          improve the effort to remove the double 

         16          poles, but also at the same time 

         17          addressing the issue of bringing this 

         18          product to the community.

         19                   We have been at this negotiating 

         20          for over, almost over 18 months here.  And 

         21          I think a concerted effort has been made 

         22          by Verizon to address the concerns of the 

         23          town through this cable license.  As 

         24          Mr. Epstein, your outside counsel, special 
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          1          counsel did note, double poles aren't 

          2          necessarily an issue that we can address 

          3          or not an issue that we can address in 

          4          this license.  The Cable Advisory 

          5          Committee did address it with us. 

          6                   We have been aggressive about 

          7          removing them and we need to get better at 

          8          it.  But I think I am not necessarily so 

          9          sure what purpose it would serve in light 

         10          of the fact that Mr. Bowman is here 

         11          tonight, he is the Vice President of 

         12          Verizon, and he has given his word that he 

         13          will continue to work with Selectmen Cohen 

         14          and the chair woman here.  And he has 

         15          stated his intentions in public.  Thank 

         16          you. 

         17                   MS. KRIEGER: Mr. Cohen. 

         18                   MR. COHEN: One of the issues that 

         19          Mr. Mehr has raised in the past is that, 

         20          that when a pole, a double pole is to be 

         21          removed, at times Verizon has said, Well, 

         22          we would remove it but there are other 

         23          companies that have their wires on the 

         24          pole and we can't move it until they take 
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          1          there wires off.  Now, these other 

          2          companies, I assume, at least Mr. Mehr has 

          3          made the point, that these other companies 

          4          are renting or leasing or somehow paying 

          5          you for the use of these poles. 

          6                   Well, what kind of power do you 

          7          have over this as the landlord?  I guess I 

          8          don't think that we would take that excuse 

          9          that, Well, you know, we can't remove the 

         10          pole because some of our tenants won't 

         11          remove their wires.  How do you get those 

         12          removed? 

         13                   MR. BOWMAN: Probably, with the 

         14          exception of electric just because of 

         15          obvious safety concerns, that NStar would 

         16          generally do their transfers first, and 

         17          then it comes down the pole and in order 

         18          with fire alarm and cable companies and 

         19          Verizon generally being last.  If a 

         20          tenant, to use your words, Mr. Cohen, is 

         21          on our pole, does not comply, does not 

         22          move, we can move their facilities in most 

         23          cases, attach it to the new pole, and then 

         24          bill them for that effort.  So we could do 
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          1          that.  But as the infrastructure of all of 

          2          the companies gets more complicated, it is 

          3          more of a delicate balance to be in 

          4          touching others' infrastructures.  So what 

          5          we try to do is work cooperatively with 

          6          the other attachees to do it in an orderly 

          7          fashion so that the poles are transferred 

          8          in an organized way. 

          9                   Now, to answer your question 

         10          directly, like I said, probably with the 

         11          exception of electric because of safety 

         12          reasons, we could ultimately move others' 

         13          equipment if it came down to that to do 

         14          the transfer from the old pole to the new, 

         15          but we really would do that, honestly, as 

         16          a last resort. 

         17                   MR. KELLEY: I am curious.  Are 

         18          most of the new poles that you install are 

         19          by the request of NStar because of 

         20          upgrades, or are the majority of poles 

         21          replaced because of their deteriorating 

         22          condition?

         23                   MR. BOWMAN: I believe more the 

         24          history here in Lexington has been for 
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          1          upgrades for electric.  But it is just 

          2          generally for the two reasons that you 

          3          pointed out, Mr. Kelley.  It is either for 

          4          an upgrade, for an electric upgrade or for 

          5          maintenance purposes.  So generally, those 

          6          would be the two bigger, two biggest 

          7          drivers for additional poles. 

          8                   MR. KELLEY: Okay.  Thank you. 

          9                   MR. PAGETT: Peter, was that a 

         10          motion you had made about postponing --

         11                   MR. KELLEY: Yes, I did make a 

         12          motion.  I didn't hear a second, but there 

         13          might not have been an opportunity. 

         14                   MR. PAGETT: I would second it. 

         15                   MR. KELLEY: Thank you.  I think 

         16          at a minimum we should be able to get at 

         17          least a commitment for a continued 

         18          communication line with you and Verizon 

         19          regarding the -- and I am not going to use 

         20          the term double pole issue because it is 

         21          not within the legal right to have this as 

         22          a leverage point in negotiations for cable 

         23          service to be, so be it, so call it.  But 

         24          the ability to feel comfortable with a new 
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          1          business partner for the Town of Lexington 

          2          with regard to their ability to follow 

          3          through on their commitments.  So we will 

          4          leave it at that.  But I don't think it is 

          5          unreasonable for us to be able to ink 

          6          something that gives us a strong 

          7          communication channel and an opportunity 

          8          to address this, which is way overdue to 

          9          be addressed in a two or four-week period. 

         10                   MR. BOWMAN: If I could just bear 

         11          the indulgence of the Board.  As Mr. 

         12          McGrail said, we have been at the 

         13          negotiations a long time, and I apologize 

         14          for having us in this situation with 

         15          double poles.  I would just really ask the 

         16          Board to approve our license this evening. 

         17                   As Mr. McGrail said, you have my 

         18          word that we will come back with a strong 

         19          communication, a strong plan, and get this 

         20          resolved once and for all.  I would just 

         21          ask the Board for that consideration. 

         22                   MS. KRIEGER: I guess the 

         23          commitment that I would like to hear is 

         24          that you are determined to be in 
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          1          compliance with the 90-day limit on double 

          2          poles in Lexington within some finite 

          3          amount of time. 

          4                   MR. BOWMAN: I mean I would say 

          5          that we should be able to attack that pole 

          6          problem aggressively in the community and 

          7          in a six-month time period be largely 

          8          through our backlog of double poles.  And 

          9          I would make that commitment here tonight 

         10          on the record to move this process, that 

         11          we will make serious inroads and get at 

         12          that, that backlog.  To your point, we 

         13          will work cooperatively with the other 

         14          attachees, Mr. Cohen or you, Madam 

         15          Chairman, whoever is designated by the 

         16          town, and get this problem resolved once 

         17          and for all in the town. 

         18                   MS. KRIEGER: And then in the 

         19          future, stay in compliance. 

         20                   MR. BOWMAN: And stay in 

         21          compliance.  And I think that is, as both 

         22          speakers had commented this evening, we 

         23          got off to a good start, like I said, as 

         24          recently as 2006, we removed 80 double 
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          1          poles.  What I think, you know, the 

          2          problem is, we are leaving some long 

          3          lingering double poles out there that are, 

          4          you know, not the correct way to manage 

          5          our inventory and rotate our inventory. 

          6                   So once again, I apologize and I 

          7          would just ask the Board for their 

          8          consideration on our license this evening. 

          9                   MS. KRIEGER: Mr. Cohen. 

         10                   MR. COHEN: Before we vote on that 

         11          motion, does the Board or are there any 

         12          other, besides the double pole issue which 

         13          has nothing to do with this license as 

         14          such, are there any other things in the 

         15          license that one or two or three of us may 

         16          object to? 

         17                   MS. KRIEGER: Mr. Pagett. 

         18                   MR. PAGETT: I was, of course, 

         19          disappointed to note in the revised 

         20          revision of the revision that Articles 3.1 

         21          and 3.2 remains exactly the same.  And 

         22          Dave, when you summarized what this agreed 

         23          to, you said there is a commitment to 

         24          provide everyone in town service within 
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          1          two years. 

          2                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: That is correct. 

          3                   MR. PAGETT: But the exceptions 

          4          haven't been removed from Article 3.1 and 

          5          two. 

          6                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: Which acceptance?  

          7          I don't have a copy of the license with 

          8          me.  Would you please --

          9                   MR. PAGETT: Well, that the 

         10          licensee has to pay for it if he lives 

         11          more than 125 or 150 feet away from 

         12          currently existing service. 

         13                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: That wasn't an 

         14          issue that I thought we needed to address.  

         15          I thought we addressed that at the last 

         16          time.  That wasn't something that we 

         17          negotiated in the last two --

         18                   MR. PAGETT: Well, how did you 

         19          address it at the last hearing? 

         20                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: I don't have the 

         21          transcript with me, but I believe Verizon 

         22          spoke to that they would provide up to 150 

         23          feet.  Beyond that, I think --

         24                   MR. PAGETT: That is what the 
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          1          contract says.  And my objection to the 

          2          contract is that it then puts the onus of 

          3          paying for that on the residents who live 

          4          more than 125 feet away.  Could I address 

          5          a question to Mr. Bowman? 

          6                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: Actually, I 

          7          haven't answered your question.  Under the 

          8          level playing field, the 150 feet is what 

          9          is in the other two licenses, the Comcast 

         10          and the RCN license.

         11                   MR. PAGETT: Well, then let me 

         12          back up and take objection to the level 

         13          playing field because, basically, if we 

         14          have a level playing field for every 

         15          provider that comes before us, then we 

         16          have no need to negotiate anything because 

         17          all we've got to do is Xerox the previous 

         18          agreement and put a one liner on top of it 

         19          that says that this applies to you, and we 

         20          all go home and go to bed. 

         21                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: Well, that is an 

         22          equivalent of the level playing field is 

         23          equivalence.  It doesn't have to be exact.  

         24          It needs to be equivalent. 
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          1                   MR. PAGETT: Well, I would like to 

          2          tilt the level playing field back a 

          3          little. 

          4                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: But this 

          5          particular language might make the license 

          6          give Verizon an unfair advantage or, I 

          7          should say, the other companies an unfair 

          8          advantage over Verizon if Verizon had to, 

          9          say, go 1,000 feet or something like that.  

         10          But I believe at the last meeting it was 

         11          discussed that there were very few houses 

         12          that would be, or residents that would be 

         13          subject to going beyond 150 feet.

         14                   MR. PAGETT: And that is the 

         15          question I would like to address to Mr. 

         16          Bowman. 

         17                   MR. BOWMAN: Okay. 

         18                   MR. PAGETT: First of all, I would 

         19          like to know, Mr. Bowman, what do you 

         20          charge people who have to pay for this 

         21          extension? 

         22                   MR. BOWMAN: Sure.  The way the 

         23          contract is written up is that for the 

         24          Verizon installation itself it would be no 
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          1          additional charge.  So if the plant exists 

          2          today and we are running it in and a 

          3          customer, let's say, places an order for 

          4          voice/data/cable, wants it on our network, 

          5          we go to the home.  It is, you know, 500 

          6          feet off of the public way, the existing 

          7          infrastructure is there, i.e. poles, we 

          8          are not going to charge any additional for 

          9          that whatsoever. 

         10                   If we need to go through conduit 

         11          and there is existing conduit there, once 

         12          again, there would be no need to charge 

         13          because we can pull through existing 

         14          infrastructure.  The only issue that I 

         15          would see in Lexington is what we would 

         16          call direct bury where the cable, the old 

         17          cable, the copper cable, let's say, going 

         18          into a home is direct buried; and 

         19          therefore, there is no path, let's say, 

         20          into the home.  I mean our current rates 

         21          using our contractors for just, you know, 

         22          digging across, say, a front lawn or grass 

         23          or whatever, somewhere in the range of two 

         24          to three dollars a foot.  So we would use 
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          1          our own existing contractors to do that 

          2          work if the property owner so desired. 

          3                   I do think it is important to 

          4          note that we are currently offering our 

          5          data product at 50 communities or so here 

          6          in Massachusetts.  We are offering our 

          7          video product in 20 communities here in 

          8          Massachusetts.  And to date, we have 

          9          charged no customer for anything beyond 

         10          the 125 or the 150 feet that is shown in 

         11          the existing or in the license as you 

         12          pointed out.  So currently, we have not 

         13          done that. 

         14                   As a matter of fact, at public 

         15          hearings that we have had in communities, 

         16          neighboring communities of yours such as 

         17          Lincoln, we have had people stand up and 

         18          say how we have come, they are way back 

         19          off the road and Verizon has gone to great 

         20          lengths to install that service.  We are 

         21          here to be in the business.  We are not  

         22          here to say we'll come out and measure 

         23          your 150 feet and therefore we need to 

         24          charge you.

                                                             41

          1                   It is our intention to get in and 

          2          install this service.  As I said, to date 

          3          we have not charged a single customer in 

          4          the State of Massachusetts to do, to 

          5          address this issue. 

          6                   MR. PAGETT: Do you know how many 

          7          of those customers were actually beyond 

          8          this cut-off point? 

          9                   MR. BOWMAN: I do not.  But we 

         10          have been in communities that have a lot 

         11          of buried, you know, communities that do 

         12          have a lot of buried, you know, 

         13          underground utilities and things of that 

         14          nature.  And we have not had one issue in 

         15          Massachusetts. 

         16                   I see every issue every day.  If 

         17          there is any complaints of installation of 

         18          this new product, I see it.  And there 

         19          have been none that says, you know, 

         20          Verizon came out, didn't tell me, over 

         21          charged me, it was this great big issue 

         22          for them.  That is not the way we are 

         23          operating.  We just want to get in and 

         24          install the service. 
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          1                   MR. PAGETT: In the same way you 

          2          have just given us a commitment about 

          3          double poles, are you prepared to give us 

          4          a commitment that you won't charge anyone 

          5          in Lexington who is over 125 feet from 

          6          current service? 

          7                   MR. BOWMAN: Well, I mean I think, 

          8          as I just said on the record is what we 

          9          are currently doing.  We have no intention 

         10          at this point in time, and I have 

         11          researched this internally, I know it was 

         12          your issue of a couple of weeks ago, we 

         13          have researched, I have researched this 

         14          personally internally.  We are not 

         15          charging for this service anywhere.  We 

         16          have no plans at the moment to be charging 

         17          beyond, you know, for services beyond 125 

         18          or 150, depending on the type of 

         19          infrastructure.  It is our intention to 

         20          just come out and install this.  I think, 

         21          as you know, the amount of what we are 

         22          talking about is probably a very small 

         23          percentage of consumers here in Lexington 

         24          who even fall into this situation.
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          1                   MR. McGRAIL:  If I could add to 

          2          Mr. Bowman's comments, a couple of things 

          3          to point out here in the Town of 

          4          Lexington.  We have a two-year build out 

          5          requirement here in the Town of Lexington. 

          6                   We currently have 24 licenses 

          7          here in Massachusetts.  That two-year 

          8          build out requirement is the best build 

          9          out requirement that a municipality has in 

         10          Massachusetts.  Typically, those build out 

         11          requirements are three, four and five 

         12          years.  State statute allows up to six 

         13          years.  So I think as a credit to your 

         14          committee, cable committee, and in the 

         15          spirit of level playing field, negotiating 

         16          within the confines of level playing field 

         17          language that was in your Comcast license, 

         18          you know, we committed here in the Town of 

         19          Lexington to complete the build out within 

         20          two years.

         21                   A couple of other things to point 

         22          out.  Mr. Bowman mentioned that the Town 

         23          of Lincoln, where residents actually came 

         24          to say, Hey, for the first time I am 
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          1          receiving services, nobody asked me about 

          2          drop length, even though the language was 

          3          in the license, because Verizon is 

          4          motivated to get as many customers as they 

          5          possibly can here in the community, this 

          6          community.

          7                   We are the third entrant.  There 

          8          are places here in Massachusetts, believe 

          9          it or not, that have never been served by 

         10          a cable operator, Comcast or RCN.  For the 

         11          first time, for example, in North Reading, 

         12          there is an entire neighborhood that is 

         13          receiving services.  When Verizon started 

         14          providing service, that was the first time 

         15          that neighborhood had been served because 

         16          we had infrastructure in place, people 

         17          have phones, so it is not an issue. 

         18                   I think we do insist on keeping 

         19          the drop length numbers in there that are 

         20          identical to what is in your incumbent 

         21          agreements purely for precedential sake.  

         22          We don't want to go in, you know, go into 

         23          our community and have them say, Well, you 

         24          did this in Lexington and you did this in 

                                                             45

          1          this community and did that in this 

          2          community.  I think when we have this 

          3          license, people will look at the Town of 

          4          Lexington and say, Hey, you gave a 

          5          two-year build out commitment to build out 

          6          the entire community, we want that here, 

          7          be able to point to the incumbent licenses 

          8          and say the reason why we did that is 

          9          because of the level playing field 

         10          guidelines that were under that community.  

         11          That is a credit to the previous work that 

         12          your Cable Advisory Committee and the 

         13          Selectmen have done in granting those 

         14          licenses.

         15                   Again, you know, practically 

         16          speaking, Verizon has to get as many 

         17          customers as they possibly can to compete 

         18          successfully here in this community.  And 

         19          in order to do so, if a person calls up 

         20          tomorrow and says I would like to sign up 

         21          for Verizon services, the answer is not 

         22          going to be, Well, you have to pay us X, Y 

         23          Z money because you are 150 feet.  The 

         24          answer is going to be how quickly can we 
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          1          get out there to help you out. 

          2                   So I respect the issue the 

          3          selectman is raising and it is an 

          4          efficient point.  But I think the 

          5          practical business side of this is that 

          6          Verizon is going to do what is in its best 

          7          interests, and that is to get to as many 

          8          people as quickly as they possibly can.  

          9          And they will never be in a position to 

         10          say, okay, we are satisfied.  The only way 

         11          Verizon is ever going to be satisfied from 

         12          a subscriber limit is if they get 100 

         13          percent of the subscriber base.  Thank 

         14          you. 

         15                   MS. KRIEGER: Okay. 

         16                   MR. KELLEY: I think pretty much 

         17          what has just been explained is exactly 

         18          one of the strong reasons and one of the 

         19          motivating reasons I have always been 

         20          happy to see Verizon come into town.  It 

         21          is not to have three competitors for some 

         22          folks in town, which would be nice if they 

         23          will have that.  It is to have competition 

         24          for some folks that at this point don't 
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          1          have any competition at all.  Comcast, 

          2          when they came in, whoever they were when 

          3          they came in many many years ago, carried 

          4          through with a commitment to, I think, 

          5          service virtually every household in town 

          6          for cable, and then in turn able to offer 

          7          phone service and internet service and all 

          8          that.  But RCN failed to do that for us, 

          9          leaving some 700 plus citizens with no 

         10          choice within, you know, for these 

         11          services. 

         12                   Verizon, because it has its 

         13          infrastructure in place, I would imagine 

         14          100 percent of the households have some 

         15          form of phone service, whatever you folks 

         16          were before you were Verizon, is a 

         17          tremendous motivation and a tremendous 

         18          opportunity and advantage for all of the 

         19          citizens in this town.  I don't want to 

         20          see you not come in and deliver your 

         21          service.  I want my Verizon, the phone to 

         22          work tomorrow morning when I get up.  So I 

         23          am not trying to do anything other than 

         24          address the issues that I think are very 

                                                             48

          1          addressable.  The commitments that have 

          2          been presented here regarding all the 

          3          relationships Lexington has with Verizon, 

          4          to solidify them, get these things cleared 

          5          up for the benefit of both Verizon and 

          6          Lexington.  And that is why I would 

          7          encourage the Board to let us have, our 

          8          Chair and Norman, to have two, not to 

          9          exceed four weeks, and getting something 

         10          presented that does let Verizon show that 

         11          they are a very committed and responsible 

         12          entity to do business with on this new, on 

         13          this new service.

         14                   MR. McGRAIL:  Respectfully, 

         15          Selectman Kelley, you know, again, based 

         16          upon the public hearings that we have had 

         17          and the comments that have been made by 

         18          the public and the recommendation of the 

         19          committee and the comments that have been 

         20          made by the Board of Selectmen, absent the 

         21          question and concern relative to the drop 

         22          length issue which I think I tried to 

         23          answer as best I could, and I know that 

         24          Mr. Bowman has had more than one 
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          1          conversation on this particular issue, the 

          2          double pole issue is not an issue relative 

          3          to this license. 

          4                   This license that is before you 

          5          this evening is about providing video 

          6          services here to the Town of Lexington.  I 

          7          think that, you know, and again, you know, 

          8          of course, I would encourage you to vote 

          9          this this evening so we can start 

         10          providing those services.  You know, you 

         11          have Mr. Verizon, Mr. Bowman, the Vice 

         12          President, Mr. Verizon, that is his 

         13          nickname.  You have his commitment on the 

         14          record as Vice President of External 

         15          Affairs for Verizon, New England, Inc., 

         16          that he will sit down, he will schedule 

         17          meetings this evening, whenever you would 

         18          like, to remain committed to this, to this 

         19          double pole issue.  You do have the simple 

         20          fact is that 80 poles have been taken down 

         21          in this community in 2006.  And I know 

         22          that, you know, that reference is made 

         23          that we are going to be a model and a 

         24          pilot.  Believe me, I have been around 
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          1          enough of these communities to know that 

          2          most communities would be very jealous if 

          3          they have heard that 80 poles have been 

          4          taken down in a community. 

          5                   So again, I think that it is 

          6          probably not an issue for the Town of 

          7          Lexington, I know, but you need to keep 

          8          this in the perspective with what is going 

          9          on in other places.  I think that the fact 

         10          of the matter remains that if you do not 

         11          want to take this up tonight, there has to 

         12          be reasons and they can't be about double 

         13          poles. 

         14                   MR. MANZ: I am not certain that 

         15          we are messing up less badly in other 

         16          communities or we are messing up worse in 

         17          other communities is an argument I am 

         18          going to buy right off the bat.  I do, 

         19          however, understand the legal argument 

         20          here.  But I do think we need to find a 

         21          way to hold Verizon to their agreement 

         22          instead of just a promise.  And the one 

         23          thing is a signed commitment.  But there 

         24          has to be more than that.  It has to be.  
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          1          I don't know whether we can talk about 

          2          withholding grants of location. 

          3                   I will not withhold my signature 

          4          tonight, although I am sorely tempted to 

          5          do so, for the reasons articulated. 

          6                   MS. KRIEGER: Yes.  I guess my 

          7          feeling is that as a liaison to the 

          8          Communications Advisory Committee and 

          9          having worked with the Communications 

         10          Advisory Committee during the negotiation 

         11          process, that I think that what we have 

         12          before us is a very reasonable contract.  

         13          I also think that we have a commitment 

         14          from Mr. Bowman tonight that he will work 

         15          with Mr. Cohen, that he is committed to 

         16          addressing the backlog of double poles.  I 

         17          am inclined to agree with Mr. Manz that 

         18          taking away 80 and still having 243 here 

         19          is not my idea of progress, but I expect 

         20          to see us to be in compliance within six 

         21          months and in the future to stay in 

         22          compliance.  And I think that is what I 

         23          heard tonight.  So I am prepared to issue 

         24          the contract tonight. 
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          1                   MR. MANZ: There is a motion on 

          2          the table, however. 

          3                   MS. KRIEGER:  There is. 

          4                   MR. KELLEY: Second, to give, and 

          5          I think I will restate that motion, which 

          6          was to simply accommodate this commitment 

          7          and legitimize this commitment and this 

          8          need that this community has by giving a 

          9          two, not to exceed four week opportunity 

         10          to get this, this all for us.  And it has 

         11          been going on for way too many years. 

         12                   MR. COHEN: Mr. Bowman, do you 

         13          have authority to give the commitment 

         14          tonight that --

         15                   MR. BOWMAN: Yes, I do.  I am, as 

         16          Mr. McGrail said, I am the Vice President 

         17          of External Affairs for Verizon.  I have 

         18          the authority to make the commitment that 

         19          we will get this backlog resolved in six 

         20          months, that we will work with you, Mr. 

         21          Cohen and Ms. Krieger, and whoever else is 

         22          designated to get this, this problem 

         23          resolved.  I will personally work with the 

         24          Board to do that. 
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          1                   My office is in Boston.  I am not 

          2          that far from here.  I will, I will make 

          3          that commitment.  And yes, I do have that 

          4          authority, Mr. Cohen, to do that or I 

          5          would not, you know, I would not stand 

          6          before you tonight and do that.

          7                   I fully recognize these 

          8          commitments here tonight on the record 

          9          and, you know, Verizon is prepared to 

         10          begin to offer services.  If the Board 

         11          would give us the leeway on this to get 

         12          this resolved, I would be in touch with 

         13          Mr. Cohen in the morning and we would 

         14          begin this process to get this issue 

         15          addressed once and for all. 

         16                   MS. KRIEGER: There is a motion.  

         17          It has to be seconded.  Patrick. 

         18                   MR. MEHR: Thank you, Madam 

         19          Chairman.  I would like to address the 

         20          comment made by the other Verizon speaker.  

         21          This is not really about double poles.  

         22          This is about whether or not this town is 

         23          willing to deal to sign a contract with a 

         24          company which is in violation of State 
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          1          law.  All right.  And I think for the 

          2          record that is what this is all about.  

          3          And the only reason you have in your hands 

          4          a specific list of these 243 double poles 

          5          is to prove to you that Verizon is in 

          6          violation of state law. 

          7                   Now, seconded to Selectman 

          8          Cohen's last question whether or not Mr. 

          9          Bowman has authority to do this, that or 

         10          the other thing, I have two comments.  

         11          First of all, we have in the file a letter 

         12          signed by the same Peter T. Bowman to then 

         13          Chair Leo McSweeney, promising that 20 

         14          double poles per month would be removed.  

         15          And then we clarified it was a net.  In 

         16          other words, if they added 40, they would 

         17          remove 60, so that the net increase would 

         18          be 20 indeed per month.  That never 

         19          happened.  Okay.

         20                   Mr. Bowman's bosses boss, I 

         21          suppose, is the one who made the 

         22          commitment before DTE three years ago.  So 

         23          the question is not whether or not they 

         24          had the authority to make these 
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          1          commitments.  The fact is that the 

          2          commitments are not followed through.  

          3          That is fact.

          4                   My second comment to the Board is 

          5          the following.  I am very disturbed that 

          6          we are asking a corporation to essentially 

          7          promise to observe the law.  Imagine if 

          8          each and every one of us, as soon as we 

          9          entered the turnpike, had to sign a 

         10          contract promising that we should not 

         11          drive over 60 miles an hour, when the 

         12          speed limit is 55. 

         13                   This is obviously not the way to 

         14          operate, it seems to me, as a citizen.  

         15          There is a law.  We all can read it.  It 

         16          is very clear.  We have already, by the 

         17          way, had the kind of meetings that now are 

         18          voiced between the Selectman Cohen, 

         19          Chairperson Krieger and others, to talk 

         20          about all of this. 

         21                   Mr. Bowman knows exactly what 

         22          Verizon needs to do and it is very simple.  

         23          It is to assign, and this is my estimate, 

         24          maybe one quarter equivalent full-time 
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          1          manager so that every week they call.  

          2          First of all, they survey the streets and 

          3          know what is out there, and then they call 

          4          there tenants and they make them move 

          5          there wires.  They are just not willing to 

          6          spend that money.  It is just about as 

          7          simple as that. 

          8                   So the idea of having more 

          9          paperwork, more commitments, in my 

         10          personal opinion, is just not efficient.  

         11          What is efficient, from the Board, if this 

         12          board has the courage to do it, is to tell 

         13          them we shall not sign your license until, 

         14          only when we know that the problem of 

         15          double poles has come into compliance with 

         16          State law. 

         17                   If you don't do that, we will be 

         18          talking about this for many many many 

         19          years to come.  And more importantly, it 

         20          seems to me, you are setting a precedent 

         21          whereby people have to promise they will 

         22          observe the law, which is not in my 

         23          opinion a way for civilized society to 

         24          operate.  Thank you. 
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          1                   MR. COHEN: Well, if I can 

          2          comment.  I really hope that this board 

          3          does not follow the last suggestion, that 

          4          we will not sign this license unless you 

          5          comply with removing the double poles. 

          6                   We have learned tonight that that 

          7          cannot be a condition of the license.  And 

          8          so I think that we cannot look at it in 

          9          that way.  The question is how are we 

         10          going to make sure that these double poles 

         11          are in fact removed. 

         12                   And by the way, I should point 

         13          out that the law, as you know, Mr. Mehr, 

         14          does not have anything in it to have 

         15          enforcement.  It is only through DTE.  You 

         16          will remember that you proposed a bylaw 

         17          change here in Lexington and the Town 

         18          Meeting did not take the issue up because 

         19          the Selectmen felt that in view of the 

         20          fact that a neighboring community had 

         21          passed the same bylaw and was taken to 

         22          court as a result of passing that bylaw, 

         23          and the Supreme Judicial Court, I believe 

         24          it was the Supreme Judicial Court, town 
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          1          counsel can --

          2                   MR. LAHEY:  The Appeals Court.

          3                   MR. COHEN:  It may have been the 

          4          Appeals Court.  The Appeals Court ruled 

          5          that the neighboring town did not have 

          6          authority to pass that bylaw.  So it is, 

          7          as I said, it is a state law, DTE, and 

          8          they are the ones to regulate it. 

          9                   Well, the question, of course, 

         10          then comes down, first of all, I do think 

         11          that, if I listened tonight, I think I 

         12          heard at least four of the Selectmen say 

         13          that they would approve the license.  I am 

         14          not sure, Mr. Pagett, whether you, you 

         15          know, not even taking into account the 

         16          double poles would, I don't know whether 

         17          you are in favor of it or not because you 

         18          have raised other issues which have 

         19          nothing to do with double poles.  The 

         20          question really comes down to when are we 

         21          going to sign it.  I believe four of us, 

         22          at least four, maybe five are in favor. 

         23                   MR. PAGETT: Well, we have a 

         24          motion. 
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          1                   MR. MANZ: There is still a motion 

          2          on the table. 

          3                   MS. KRIEGER: Yes.  The motion on 

          4          the table is to delay for two weeks prior 

          5          to signing the contract. 

          6                   MR. COHEN: No, it is the motion 

          7          to delay for two weeks --

          8                   MS. KRIEGER: Right. 

          9                   MR. KELLEY: Not to exceed four, 

         10          not knowing quite what our calendar will 

         11          be.  But giving enough latitude and still 

         12          being comfortable in the 60-day window. 

         13                   MS. KRIEGER: It doesn't matter 

         14          because I am not going to vote for that 

         15          because I do believe it is appropriate to 

         16          sign tonight. 

         17                   MR. MANZ: Well, let's try it out. 

         18                   MR. KELLEY: The motion is to 

         19          postpone the signing of the license for 

         20          Verizon cable service for two, not to 

         21          exceed four weeks, to allow Verizon's 

         22          representative to make a written 

         23          commitment to its compliance with the 

         24          known state statute of double poles.
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          1                   MR. McGRAIL:  Can I just make a 

          2          comment, not to be presumptuous.  That 

          3          motion would violate federal law.  Just 

          4          not to be disrespectful, I think, of any 

          5          sort, but that motion does directly 

          6          violate federal law. 

          7                   MR. KELLEY: Well, then I will 

          8          take out the double pole piece. 

          9                   MR. MEHR:  You want to think 

         10          about it for two to four weeks. 

         11                   MR. KELLEY: Yes.  I want to think 

         12          about it for two to four weeks. 

         13                   MS. KRIEGER: That has been 

         14          seconded? 

         15                   MR. PAGETT: Yes. 

         16                   MS. KRIEGER: All right. 

         17                   MR. COHEN: Not to exceed four 

         18          weeks. 

         19                   MS. KRIEGER:  Not to exceed four 

         20          weeks. 

         21                   MR. COHEN: I don't know what the 

         22          two weeks will be. 

         23                   MR. KELLEY: Well, we are meeting 

         24          in two weeks, aren't we? 
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          1                   MR. COHEN: We are meeting in two 

          2          weeks and we are meeting in four weeks.  

          3          We are not meeting in four weeks. 

          4                   MS. KRIEGER: There is a motion.  

          5          All in favor? 

          6                   MR. PAGETT: I. 

          7                   MR. KELLEY: I. 

          8                   MS. KRIEGER: Opposed? 

          9                   MR. COHEN: I. 

         10                   MS. KRIEGER: Now, may I try 

         11          another motion.  A motion to approve the 

         12          Verizon license tonite.  Is there a 

         13          second? 

         14                   MR. MANZ: It is a second. 

         15                   MS. KRIEGER: All in favor?  I.

         16                   MR. COHEN: I. 

         17                   MS. KRIEGER: Opposed? 

         18                   MR. KELLEY: The battle is lost.  

         19          I want to see delivery of service.  

         20          Additionally, I hope and I wish you well 

         21          that you deliver your commitment as well. 

         22                   MR. BOWMAN: Thank you, Mr. 

         23          Kelley.  And I don't want to have this be 

         24          a battle lost by any means.  I appreciate 
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          1          the Board and I will live up to their 

          2          action this evening.  And I will live up 

          3          to the commitments I promise. 

          4                   MS. KRIEGER: Thank you. 

          5                   MR. BOWMAN: Thank you. 

          6                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: Do you want the 

          7          license now? 

          8                   MS. KRIEGER: If you leave the 

          9          license with us, we will get it signed. 

         10                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: Sure.  Excuse me.  

         11          Peter, did you sign this already? 

         12                   MR. BOWMAN: If the Board will 

         13          sign them, I will wait for them whenever 

         14          it is convenient. 

         15                   MS. KRIEGER: We won't sign it 

         16          until the end of the evening. 

         17                   MR. BOWMAN: That is fine.

         18                   MR. BECKER:  Well, Dave Becker, a 

         19          member of the Communications Advisory 

         20          Committee.  We are going to have five 

         21          signed originals.  We are going to give 

         22          them to Verizon.  Verizon will get their 

         23          chief to sign off on them and give us two 

         24          back.  They will keep two and send one to 
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          1          our cable attorney.  Verizon will also 

          2          send a Xeroxed copy to the state because 

          3          -- we are going to have five originals, 

          4          two of which will come back to the town, 

          5          two will be kept by Verizon, one will go 

          6          to our attorney.  And then Verizon will 

          7          send a Xeroxed copy to Mass. Cable, the 

          8          Office of Telecommunications. 

          9                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: There is actually 

         10          only four copies up there.

         11                   MR. BECKER:  Okay.  Well, we 

         12          should have an extra one. 

         13                   MS. KRIEGER: Okay.  We got that 

         14          far.  We will manage how to sign the 

         15          contract.  Thank you. 

         16                   MR. COHEN: Well, actually, they 

         17          won't begin service until all of the 

         18          contracts are signed. 

         19                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: That is correct.  

         20          Until everybody has signed. 

         21                   MR. COHEN: And until they are 

         22          turned back to the town, right? 

         23                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: That is correct.  

         24          And the bond posed to the town as well.  
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          1          They will have to file a bond. 

          2                   MR. COHEN: Right.  And the bond 

          3          will be --

          4                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: Will be submitted 

          5          and attached to the license. 

          6                   MR. COHEN: All right.  Thank you. 

          7                   MR. BUCZKOWSKI: Yes, it has been 

          8          reviewed.  Okay.

          9                   MS. KRIEGER:  Okay.  Thank you.

         10                   (At which time the matter was 

         11          adjourned at 9:30 p.m.)
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